HISTORY AND DEMOGRAPHIC MATERIAL

ASSEMBLED FOR THE BARCROFT

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION PLAN

1988



CONTENTS

HISTORY OF BARCROFT COMMUNITY.........JAYNE MCQUADE
COMMERCIAL AREA OF BARCROFT...........PHYLLIS KINSEY

RESIDENTIAL AREA OF BARCROFT..........SUSAN SARCONE
PHYLLIS KINSEY

SchLS OF BARCROFT ..... ® ® ® o ® ® & ® ® o 0 o0 .ELIZABETII mMIK

CHURCHES OF BARCROFT....ccc... eeeeeee.ADALINE MARYE ROBERTSON
CATHY GOLDSCHMIDT

DEMOGRAPHIC DATA OF BARCROFT..........SUSAN INGRAHAM
(ARLINGTON COUNTY STAFF)

HISTORY OF BARCROFT COMMUNITY HOUSE:...MILDRED HANDY RITCHIE



HISTORY
OF

BARCROFT COMMUNITY

by

Jayne McQuade




FOUR MILE RUN

BICYCLE TRAIL



BARCROFT COMMUNITY HOUSE
800 SOUTH BUCHANAN STREET
Spring of 1989

The Arlington County Board granted this building and land an
Historic District designatior in 1983.
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A BRIEF HISTORY OF THE BARCROFT COMMUNITY
The Barcroft community, located on high ground bordering
Four-Mile-Run, traces its earliest existence to the time of
George Washington, who may have built a mill here. George
Washington Parke Custis and Custis Lee each built mills later
in the vicinity. Custis' mill was destroyed during the Civil
War. After the war, Dr. .John Wolverton Barcroft, who had had a
mill about 5 miles further west on Columbia Pike which was also
destroyed in the war, bought the site and rebuilt the mill on the
foundation of Custis' mill. He built his home on the hill
above, and after 1885 the mill was known as Barcroft Mill. It
had previously been known as the Arlington Mill, and the area
as Arlington Heights. Dr. Barcroft's mill is said to have
had the largest mill whell on the east coast. The millrace
was nearly a mile long and almost 8 feet wide.

About 1850, a single-track railroad was built along Four
Mile Run. The railroad ran from Alexandria to Bluemont. A
station was located at Columbia Pike. Besides passengers and
grain for the mill, it hauled many animals to holding pens
at Columbia Pike. The animals were then driven on foot down
Columbia Pike to an abattoir near the present Pentagon Annex.
This continued until 1905 when a new railroad spur was built

closer to the river.



closer to the river. The railroad ended operations in August 1968, and
since 1979, the right-of-way has been part of the Washington and 01d

Dominion Trail.

: Also in the area prior to 1903 were a 162-acre farm called CEDAR
HILL owned by Frank Corbett and, to the north, land owned by the heirs
of James T. Ball. In 1893, part of this land was sold to Charles and

Lisetta Kolb, who built a home called (cont. on next Page )
. 4
frse 2 "Woodmeacd e
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"Woodmeade." 1In 1892, Corbett, whose land ran along Four Mile

Run and Columbia Pike, subdivided the part of his land along the
Pike near the railroad station. He named the subdivision
"Corbett" and planned 4 north-south streets and one east-west
street on the land above the station.

Frank Corbett's estate was sold to Mrs. Abbie G. Fox in 1903,
and that marked the real beginnings of the community known
as Barcroft: The villagé of Corbett was re-subdivided, dedicated
and renamed Barcroft. The deed was recorded April 22, 1904.
It now had 4 east-west streets and 2 north-south streets. These
were the present S. 9th St., S. 8th Rd., S. 8th St., S. 7thSt.
and Buchanan and Wakefield. A '"building boom" began in
Barcroft, which until then had about 6 homes, the mill, a
grocery and the station. ’

For about 6 months in 1903, 0. Edward Haring, sm of the
owner of the grocery store and nephew of Sidney T. Marye,
another early resident, published the fortnightly Barcroft
News. Stephen P. Wright, son in law of Mrs. Fox amd developer
of Barcroft, advertised "own your own home' amd "Barcroft lots--
100 x 250 feet--liberal terms.'" The paper published news of
the bustling little community--marriages, births, deaths, travels
and complaints about the irregular and erratic train service.
Editorials expressea the hope that the newly-elected Commonwealths
Attorney and Sheriff William Palmer, a Barcroft resident, would

lead a reform so "Alexandria County and debauchery will no
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longer be considered synonymous terms.'

By 1907, there were nine small children in the community
ready for school. Older children took the train to Washington
(a trip of over an hour) or walked to established schools at
Columbia (near Walter Reed Dr. and Columbia Pike) or Glen
Carlyn. Each was over a mile away, too far for children under
7 to walk, and the route to Glen Carlyn involved walking on
the railroad .tracks: Stephen Wright, president of '"The
Citizens' Association of Barcroft' and other citizens petitioned
the School Board to establish a school in Barcroft. The School
Board declined, citing '"a capable teacher at Glen Carlyn." The
citizens protested and the Board reconsidered. By November, 1907,
Mrs. Amy Fairfax was contracted as teacher for nine school aged a
and one "almost'" school aged children.v A room in her house was
the schoolroom. She received $10 rent per month for the room
and $25 per month for serving as teacher and janitor.

In May,.1908, two lots were purchased by the Trustees of the
Methodist Episcopal Church of Barcroft, and during that summer
church members built a one-room frame chapel, now the Community
House. Mrs. Fairfax was unable to teach or provide room for the
school in the fall of 1908, so in October the School Board
approved an offer from Sidney T. Marye, Secretary of the Methodist
Episcopal Church at Barcroft, to rent the building for $10.00
per month. |

The school remained in this building until the new brick
school opencd in 1925. A second small room was added in 1913,

and from then on two teachers were emploved. 1In 1908, the

s
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"Citizens Association of Barcroft" became the "Barcroft School and

' which was incorporated in Virginia in 1914. On August 21,1914,

Civic League,'
the Cchool and Civic League bought the building from the trustees of the
church. 1In 1983, the Community House was recognized by the Arlington
Historical Commission as an historical district.

In 1914, electricity came to Barcroft on the impetus of Mr. Walter
Handy. He recruited more than the necessary 12 customers for a hookup,
and then wired the houses himself. 1In 1917, telephone party lines were
installed. Volunteer fire departments were organized in the county
about 1921, but this did not prevent many tragic fires, some of them
caused by sparks from the steam trains. In 1926, the mill burned down.

In 1919, Robert May, who lived near the school, started a busroute
serving Barcroft, Alcova Heights and other communities along the Pike.
He had two buses, actually converted trucks, and he drove one while his
wife drove the other. This service made commuting to washington much
easier for employees and school children, and encouraged the growth of
Barcroft. ’

Walter O'Hara began building homes in North Barcroft subdivision
about 1918, and built several hundred all together. Barcroft has
continued to grow over the years until most available land has been
builton. The school, whose district expanded to include more than the
neighborhood, was enlarged in 1943, 1946, 1953 and 1975. By 1950,
most of the large homesteads had been developed for housing. Some areas
within Barcroft were Barcroft, North Barcroft, Payne"s Addition, George
Mason Terrace and "Restabit". New housing in recent years has been
mainly apartments and townhouses on the edges of the community. The
completion of George Mason Drive from Arlington Boulevard to Columbia
Pike in early 1960's made Barcroft even more accessible to Washington

and the rest of Arlington.

Jayne McQuade
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TRANSPORTATION

RAILROAD

To the north of present day Columbia Pike and beside the then W.0.D.

Railroad track of the Southern Railroad stood a station building listed on
its schedule as CORBETT. After the resubdivision in 1903 the name of the
stop became known as BARCROFT. It was called ARLINGTON STATION on the 1892
plat of Corbett.

Early residents rode the train daily to and from work in the District
of Columbia. Students attending high school rode the train from Columbia
to D.C. because there was no high school in Arlington until Washington-Lee
High School was built.

Previously to this, Civil War troops may have used this location to
reach Fort Berry, Ft. Barnard, and Ft. Richardson south of Columbia Pike.

During its final days, the Barcroft Railway Station served as a storage
place for Civil Defense. Permit #8574 was issued April 1, 1974 to
demolish the Freight Station at 4825 Columbia Pike.

BUS

Robert L. May, a Barcroft resident residing at what is now known as
805 S. Buchanan Street, started the first bus service on Columbia Pike in 1919,
enabling the people of Barcroft to shop and communicate with persons of
other villages developing along Columbia Turnpike such as Westmont and Columbia.
Dr. Henry Corbett, M.D. lived at Westmont. If the Haring store was out of an
item the store at Westmont might have a supply. Students attending sixth,
seventh, or eighth grades at Columgia School could continue to walk from
Barcroft or ride May's bus for 5¢.

It is uncertain if the first bus was a truck on which Mr. May built two
long wooden benches. Passengers ascended and descended by steps built at
the rear and they sat facing each other. A tarp overhead was raised or lowered
to protect passengers from the weather. He added a second bus by popular
demand. This was driven by Mr§. May. Evening runs to D.C. for entertainment
could be arranged by request. This enterprise was the beginning of the A.B.&W.
bus line that served most of Northern Virginia.

Today, Barcroft is served by Metro bus 16A, 16D, and 16E on Columbia
Pike, destination Annandale. During week day rush hours, Metro bus 16W
includes a loop from the Pike into the residential area bound by Taylor, 4th,
and Wakefield Streets. Buses 22A and 22B operate between Shirlington and
Walker Chapel through Barcroft on South George Mason Drive.

1 Community Planning, Housing and Development, Arlington
County Courthouse

2 Ritchie, Mildred Handy. "Barcroft, Arlington County, Virginia
A Village Metamorphosis" Arlington Historical
Magazine, October 1980 Vol.6 No.4& p.36

3 Interview: Elizabeth Wright Strother
Adaline Marye Robertson
Sallie Wright Simmons




Robert L. May house as it appeared in 1989 before
being town down and replaced by two new homes. He and his
wife operated the original bus service.from this residence ..
805 South Buchanan Street.



I

809 South Buchanan Street

This picture of the Robey house was taken in 1989. It
was a favorite after school place for children to gather
and purchase ice cream, candy, and soft drinks from the
small store located in the front part. The Robeys had
two sons, Robert and Henry.

Later, the Sollenbergers bought the residence. It is
now owned by Rose Milburn and lived in by her family.




OSCAR HARING'S STORE

The Store was located on the east side of the railroad
tracks and the north side of Columbia Pike.

Oscar Haring, born about 1857, was from Hunters Mill,
Virginia. He married Ida Doremus. To determine when he-~
arrived in Barcroft, their son, Oscar Edward Haring was
born April 19, 1887, the Bible records show he was born
in Barcroft, so it was some time prior to that. Though

I do not know when the store was built, there is a possi-
bility that Mr, Haring built it.

The Harings lived in the same building as the store.
Some distance from the store on Columbia Pike there was a
stable, in it were kept 2 wagonfi, 2 horses and a fringed

top buggy.

The store was heated by a pot bellied stove. Early morning
deliveries of bread were stored in a large wooden bread
container on the porch. A hitching post was located in
front of the store. Food items were sold in the old fash-
ioned way. The Barcroft Post Office was located in a
corner of the store with Virginia Doremus as postmistress.

There was a large storage building some distance back from
the store where among other things, the Barcroft News print-
ing press was located and where Tom Foley had his quarters.

Tom Foley was the delivery boy for the Barcroft store. Mr.
Haring took him from an orphanage when he was about 14 years
old, he lived with the Haring family until the store was
sold. Tom was well known throughout Barcroft as he con-
tinued to show up in later years, eften—under—the—influence
ef—alcohol.

Mr. Haring sold the store about 1910.



OSCAR HARING'S STORE

The Store stood on the east side of the railroad tracks and
the north side of Columbia Pike.

Oscar Haring, born about 1857, was from Hunters Mill, Virginia.

He married Ida Doremus. To determine when he arrived in
Barcroft___ their son, Oscar Edward Haring was born April 19, 1887,
the Bible records show he was born in Barcroft, so it was some
time prior to that. Though I do not know when the store was budsdit,
there is a possibility that Mr. Haring built it. He was of medium
height and wore a bushy mustache.

There were 3 Doremus sisters from Hunter's Mill who later moved
to Barcroft:

Ida Doremus married Oscar Haring

Annie Doremus married Sydney Marye

Virginia Doremus married George Pepper

The Harings lived in the same building as the store. Some dis-
tance from the store on Columbia Pike there was a stable, in it
wase kept 2 wagons, 2 horses and a fringed top buggy.

The store was heated by a pot bellied stove. Early morning
deliveries of bread were stored in a large wooden bread con-

tainer on the porch. A hitching post was located in front of

the store. Food items were sold in the old fashioned way,

weighed by scale, coffee ground while you wait, cheese by the

wedge and candy by the penny. The Barcroft Post Office was located
in a corner of the store with Virginia Doremus as postmistress.

On the property were many fruit trees and a grape arbor.

A large storage building was located some distance back from the
store where .among other things, the Barcroft News printing
press was located and where Tom Foley had his quarters.

Tom Foley was the delivery boy for the Barcroft store. Mr. Haring
took him from an orphanage when he was about 14 years old, he
lived with the Haring family until the store was sold. Tom was
well known throughout Barcroft as he continued to show up in later

years, oftenunder—the—influence—ofalechot.

Oscar Edward Haring, the son, moved to Portland, Oregon about 1910
and his parents followed shortly after.

Mr. Oscar Haring died Dec. 24, 1924 in Arlington.



OSCAR HARING'S STORE

The Store was located on the east side of the railroad tracks and
the north side of Columbia Pike.

Oscar Haring was from Huntérs Mill, Virginia and moved to George-
town. On May 4, 1885, he purchased land in Barcroft from Frank and
Caroline Corbett. He married Ida Doremus. Their son, Oscar Edward Haring
was born April 19, 1887. The Bible records show he was born in
Barcroft, so the store was built prior to that. Though I do not know
when the store was built, there is a possibility that Mr. Haring built it.

The Harings lived in the same building as the store. Some distance
from the store on Columbia Pike there was a stable; in it were kept
2 wagons, 2 horses,and a fringed top buggy.

The store was heated by a pot bellied stove. Early morning deliveries
of bread were stored in a large wooden bread container on the porch. A
hitching post was located in front of the store. Food items were sold in
the old fashioned way. The Barcroft Post Office was located in a corner
of the store with Virginia Doremus as Postmistress.

There was a large storage building some distance back from the store
where among other things, the Barcroft News printing press was located and
where Tom Foley had his quarters.

Tom Foley was the delivery boy for the Barcroft store. Mr. Haring
took him from an orphangae when he was about 14 years old, he lived with
the Haring family until the store was sold. Tom was well known throughout
Barcroft as he continued to show up in later years.

Mr. Haring sold the store about 1910.

—Adaline Marye Robertson



PARK

The Map of Corbett, Alexandria, Virginia dated 1892 land the
Subdivision of Barcroft 1903 2 show a park on the northwest corner of
today's Buchanan Street and Columbia Pike. This land marked PARK
was owned by Frederick Handy. Residents of that time referred to it
as THE GROVE because of the many lovely trees. A small portion of
this land up hill and close to the Handy house was a pasture for
their 2 or 3 cows and the family garden. Neighborhood children
played in the shade of the trees. Families picniced in the area
and held fund raisers for community projects. Often colorful
Japanese lanterns were hung in the trees for a festive atmosphere. 3

1 Deed Book N-4 p.488 Alexandria County, Clerk's
Office, Arlington County Courthouse

2 Deed Book 100 p.53 Alexandria County, Clerk's
Office, Arlington County Courthouse

3 Interview: Elizabeth Wright Strother
Sallie Wright Simmons
Adaline Marye Robertson



BARCROFT COMMERCIAL AREA

The business district on the north side of Columbia Pike between
Four Mile Run and George Mason Drive is generally considered the
southern boundry of BARCROFT for civic association purposes.

BARCROFT SHOPPING CENTER 4801 - 4821 South Columbia Pikel
was built and owned by Barcroft Shopping Center Inc., Walter Von Herbulis,
President, in November 1949.2 It replaced the Haring General Store and
a small open area known as Park Barcroft. Calvin James Arnett and his
wife, Pauline Betty Arnett, purchased the: shopping center and adjacent
land on May 29,1950.3

There have been many tenants. In addition to the Hairloom and
George's Inn that todayadd stability and longevity, the Center is
occupied by Carpet Clearance Center, Asian Grocery Market, The Pastry
Connection Bakery and Restuarant serving French and Vietnamese food,
Betty Bright Cleaners, H.K.H Jewelry, and Pizza Hut Delivery.1 Former
shops include Barcroft Hardware, Acme Foods, High's Inc., Firooz TV,
Aristo Cleaners, Our Town Realty, Thai Oriental Market, a Deli, and a
Seafood House. :

1 Real Estate Data, Inc. 1987
2 Zoning Office, Arlington County
3 Deed Book 933 p. 426 Clerk's Office, Arlington County

GEORGE'S INN

On July 10,1970, George Mallos opened Georgds
Inn serving steak and seafood. The trophies on
display attest to his support of local athletics.
Al Smith, a regular customer retouched a wall
painting in the dining area. He also painted from
a photograph,a picture of the Greek Island of
Cornos, George's boyhood home. At present,
George's Inn has been in business at the same
location the longest of any in the shopping
center.

Interview: George Mallos

BARBER SHOP

The County set off a furor in the shopping
center the day it notified Paul he must turn off
his electric red and white barber shop sign. An
ordinance prohibits moving signs. This sign was
a handsome antique, once universally used to
identify the service performed within. When
activated, the red and white stripes swirled
vertically in a delightful pattern,

Interview: Phyllis Kinsey






BARCROFT HARDWAREL

Sam Perry and his brother opened Barcroft Hardware, a
friendly family store selling quality merchandise and giving
expert advice on how to do-it-yourself if you have to. When
Sam's brother left, Sam's wife, "Mrs. Sam", filled in and he
hired neighborhood boys to work after school and Saturdays.
Mr. Perry passed away in 1978.

Frank Bonevicz purchased the business and reopened

Barcroft Hardware January 1,1979. Frank and his son continued
the same friendly, helpful service. Retired gentlemen and men
on their days off gathered to-chat and swap hunting and fish-
ing stories. Often they chimed in with suggestions on how-to-
fix-it and added encouragement to the uninitiated customer to
try —— "if you have a problem, call and I'll stop by". It was
a sad day in July 1986 when the doors closed for the final time.

Interview Frank Bonevicz
Phyllis Kinsey



OTHER COMMERCIAL ESTABLISHMENTS FROM 4707 to 4601 SOUTH COLUMBIA PIKE

ROY ROGERS

As the role of women changed during and especially after World War II,
women spent less time at home. Convenient, "eat in or take out", neighbor-
hood fast food came to Barcroft in 1966 when Marriott Corporation built
HOT SHOPPES, a family restaurant (now Roy Rogers) at 4707 Columbia Pike.

The house belonging to William Wallace Wright and his wife, Lucille,2
formerly stood on the property next to the Roy Rogers carry out window.
(The house was the former home of John Newlon, miller for Dr. Barcroft.z)
It was a large house with a huge front porch across the entire front.

Mr. Wright was a lawyer in D.C. with the Justice Department. During World
War I he worked for the F.B.I. because of his ability to read and write
German. Just before and after World War II was a period of rapid growth in
Northern Virginia. Lucille Wright rented her home at 4713 Columbia Pike to
Mrs. Fred A. Blevins 3 to use as a boarding house for construction workers.
She built a gasoline station close to the corner of Buchanan Street and
Columbia Pike in 1950 and leased it to Gulf 0il Company. 4 Both the house
and station were demolished® to make way for Hot Shoppes and the parking
space for patrons.

William Wallace Wright House (Newlon)
4713 South Columbia Pike

W.W. Wright children: L to R: Elizabeth,
Sallie, William Wilson. Forground:
Carroll Wright petting the cat.



Real Estate Data, Inc. 1987
Interview: Adaline Marye Robertson
Criss—Cross Directory. 1955. Haines Publisher

Interview: Col. William Wilson Wright, son of
William Walace and Lucille Wright

Community Planning, Housing & Development,
Inspection Services Division of

Arlington County

Photograph: Col. William W. Wright




William Wallace Wright House - b. 1911
4713 South Columbia Pike

W.W. Wright children: L to R: Elizabeth
Sallie, William ngon. Foreground:
Carroll Wright petting the cat.

1 Real Estate Data, Inc. 1987

2 Interview: Adaline Robertson

3 Criss-Cross Directory. 1955. Haines Publisher

4 Interview: Col. William Wilson Wright, son of
William Wallace Wright and his wife

Lucille Wright

5 Community Planning, Housing & Development,
Inspection Services Division of Arlington County



JAPANESE AND KOREAN RESTAURANT SUSHIBAR

The Japanese and Korean Restaurant Sushibar at 4701 South Columbia
Pike is one of several ethnic eateries to replace "SAM'S" homestyle cooking
of the 50's. Preserved within the walls of the present structure, with
additions and modifications, is the Carroll Wright House built in 1919 !l by

one of Barcroft's early inhibitants. Mr. Wright was a realtor and an
appraiser.

1 Real Estate Data 1987

2 Photographs by Barbara Perry, student at George Mason University,
1988.



AMOCO SERVICE CENTER

"Mr. Kelly" operated a service station
slightly west of the present station. In 1967
Ken Carter purchased the station from him and
in 1969 rebuilt the AMOCO station we know at
4625 Columbia Pike, giving quality service for
20 years.

Ken and his father were known as the
Carter Racing Family. Ken built and raced
the A altered (A-B-C-D) car named RAT'S NEST
at drag strips locally and nationally.

Mr. Carter also owns an AMOCO service
station on Chain Bridge Road in McLean, Va.

e e
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Interview: Ken Carter

Picture: Ken Carter



4615 SOUTH COLUMBIA PIKE

F.G.G. Industries Ltd. of Woodbridge rented this 30'x 40' building and
its parking area to USED CAR SALES for dealer preparation of cars. They are
succeeded by OLD DOMINION AUTO BROKERS. The building was erected in 1962. 1

1 Real Estate Data Inc. 1987

DUKE FILM EXPRESS PHOTO SERVICE

Duke Film Express Photo Service at 4611 South Columbia Pike was built in
1954 by Roberta Duke for a wholesale/retail film processing business.l In 1972
the photo lab moved to another location. The building remained vacant. Some-
one wanted to rent it for a GO GO restaurant. Arlington County suggested the
applicant for the Use Permit appear before the Barcroft School and Civic
League for the reaction of the community. It was an interesting and lively
discusion. There really is insufficient parking for this type of establishment
and for other reasons, the league and business community recommended denial
of the permit.

Roy and Ruby Haskins purchased the‘property in 1978.2 Duke Film Express
Photo Service returned to its original location in,1979. The lab has served
the community and Northern Virginia for approximately 27 years.

1 Community Planning Housing and Development Inspection
Services of Arlington County

2 Real Estate Data Inc. 1987

MALCOLM'S AUTOMOTIVE

Lacey J. and Katherine A. Malcolm built the service station at 4601 South
Columbia Pike in 1951.1 Gasoline and other ESSO products were sold, cars
serviced and repaired.

The Malcolm's Manager, Ira (Buddy) Daniels,purchased the station and
retained Jim Gibson as Chief Mechanic. Buddy took out the gasoline pumps
and added one bay to the building. Malcolm's name remains to indicate the
expert service customers have learned to appreciate.

1 Real Estate Data Inc. 1987






OFFLCE BUILDING
944 S. Wakefield Street

James W. Head, an employee at the Patent Office in D.C. purchased lots
8 — 12 - 13 - 14 in block G with improvements from Abbie Fox on March 21, 1907.
The house on lot 14 was commonly referred to as the Head House at 4607
Columbia Pike. In 1951 a permit was issued to move and turn this house to
944 S. Wakefield Street by request of the leasee, Mr. Driscall. 2 Head
resubdivided lots 12 - 13 - .and 14 and on May 5, 1954, James W. Head and his
wife Margaret C. Head sgld all of lot 8, 12A and parts of 13 and 14 to Louis J.
and Anna T. Carusillo. A portion of lot 14 had been purchased previously
by Lacy J. Malcolm for a_gasoline station. The house at 944 S. Wakefield Street
was demolished in 1962.

The Offutts purchased the property on which this office building was
bult in 1960. This white brick 24story building with parking area for 25 cars
was built in 1963 by T.J. Offutt as a general operations office for Pittmar
Construction and Property Management. Space was rented to Gibralter Companies
and Arlington Electrolysis.

The Dittmar Company moved to a new location in Vienna during 1988. Typing-Inc.
and MYCOR, Inc. became new tenants.

1 Deed Book 117 p.163 Alexandria County, Clerk's Office Arlington

County Court House

2 Community Planning, Housing, and Development Inspection

Services Division. Arlington County Court House

3 Deed Book 1150 pp.487-489. Clerk's Office Arlington

County Court House

4  Real Estate Data, Inc. 1987




BARCROFT MEDICAL BUILDING

Dr. Ray Hamilton built the Barcrof% Medical Building and practiced dentistry
at 939 South Wakefield Street from 1953~ wntil his retiriment for health reasons.
Antonio Scafone, Jr. bought the property August 5, 1980.

The first doctors to occupy the suites were: Dr. Ray Hamilton and Dr Fred
Chandler, both dentists; and physicians Dr. Laweesce. M. Pack, MD and Dr. Alice
Wolfsohn, MD . Dr. Chandler continues to practice in the same office suite he
occupied in 1953.

Dr. Ikars Lans, DDS purchased Dr. Hamilton's practice. Presently, the
other offices are occupied by Dr. William Dodson, DDS., Dr. Meyer Rosenbaum,
Obstetrician/Gynecologist, and the Children's Speech and Language Service.

1 Real Estate Data, Inc. 1987. The microfiche of the Deed
Book in the Clerks Office of Arlington County is marked
unreadable showing Dr. Hamilton's purchase of the land.

2 Deed Book 2020 p. 900 Clerk's Office of Arlington County.
Interview : Dr. Fred H. Chandler, Jr. DDS

COMMERCIAL AREA Av
940-948 SOUTH GEORGE MASON DRIVE
AND
COLUMBIA PIKE

Samuel G. Stoneburner and his wife Gladys Ager Stoneburner sold lots 5-6-
7-8- Block M of East Barcroft to Helmar Investment Corporation in April of 1959
for the construction of a supermarket and shopping center.

.The work began in 1959 on the first phase which was a supermarket.2

March 1962 Sharpe and Hamaker Co., contractors received permission

to complete the shopping center at George Mason Drivg and Columbia Pike on
behalf of the Helmar Investment Corporation, owners.

The names of the stores and managements have changed, but there has always
been a grocery store (Food Fair, Grand Union, Food Star) on the Columbia Pike
side followed by a laundromat and drycleaning establishment, hairstyling,
barber shop and drug store (Drug Fair, Gray Drug, Rite Aid).

Deed Book 1364 pp 67-68 Clerk's Office Arlington County
Real Estate Data Inc. 1987

3 Community Planning, Housing and Development, Inspection
Services Division Arlington County °






18 MINUTE LAUNDRY & DRY CLEANING

The coin operated laundromat was owned
by John Griffiths until his retirement. He
died in February 1988 at the age of 80.

Mr. Khamphout Phanthavong bought the
laundry and dry cleaning business in 1976.
Mr. Phanthavong came to the United States
as a student in 1961 to attend Catawba
College in North Carolina. He was a radio
announcer and translator for the Voice of
America in Washington D.C. prior to settling
in Barcroft.

"Mr. Phan" has made a valuable
contribution to the country of his choice!
His warm smile and pleasant greetings are
delightful.

Weight Watchers have noticed his coin scale
by the door.

DRUG FAIR

When it opened, Drug Fair included a
popular soda fountain and snack bar section
serving breakfasts and lunches only. It was
a great place for young families with child-
ren to drop in for breakfast Sunday before
or after church. Everyone in the family
selected their favorites from the menu and
Mom was not the short order cook! Dad,
with luck, could buy the New York Times'before
the papers were sold out!



SMITH'S TOURIST HOME

22 South Pershing Drive

In the early 1930's,
Goldie Smith and her husband
Herbert came to the Washington
area from Front Royal,Virginia
looking for a business and job
opportunities for their young
adult children. They rented a
tourist home on Westmoreland
Street in Rosslyn and shortly
thereafter found a better
location on Wilson Blvd. near
Colonial Village.

Goldie was a very capable
energetic person with a keen

sense of business. She had a license to sell real estate and was soon engaged in
buying and selling real estate as well as managing the tourist home. She saved
the money from her real estate sales for the down payment on a house and then
proposed to her husband that they buy a house instead of renting. The large house
at Route 50 and Pershing Drivel in the subdivision of Sarah C. Ball was purchased
and converted to a tourist home.

Several years later, October 1,1957, Goldie bought the land across the street
in North Barcroft at 21 South Pershing Drive and built a beautiful home in 1960
that she called "Sunset Haven'" for her retirement when she could pursue her hobby,
decogating lovely egg shells. Goldie never retired — tourists filled "Sunset Haven"
too!

Among her guests were men who erected the Iwo Jima Memorial and Mrs. Phillips
who invented the game Monzpoly. Parker Brothers credit Charles B. Darrow with the
present form of Monopoly. Jurors were frequently sequestered at Smith's too.

October 1,1978 the Smith Tourist Home was sold to Creative Environments, Inc.
The bsautiful big stone house and its flower gardens were demolished January 18,
1979. The construction of the Towne Pershing townhouses by builder James Reed
began. The new homes are attractive and the common area well landscaped and
maintained.

Today Goldie's daughter and her husband, Renice P. Myers make "Sunset Haven"
their home.

1 Interview with Goldie Smith by Grace Jewett, November 21,1974.
Oral History Program, Arlington County Library and Zonta Club
of Arlington.

2 Community Planning, Housing and Development Services Division
of Arlington County Virginia

3 Arlington News, April 11,1974
4 Washington Star, November 24,1975

5 Interview with Betty Jane Myers, Goldie's daughter

6 Picture of the Smith Tourist Home, Betty Jane Myers



RESIDENTIAL AREA
OF
BARCROFT

Susan Sarcone
Phyllis Kinsey



N A

Flanm — Meiranborhood Histo

Pl el o
U1 s

HLs

roerot b began as

are of the 19tn

s e wmall soals hoos burlding n

no

Commari Lty was led 1m bhe last

ar lvder né ; : assonciliatea with the Barcrovrt area than

O Hatra, The O Hara tamnily. Walter and his son, Robert, have
Dullt more homnes in the nelghbornood over a longer period of time

than any obthar Doy ldar.

Wal ter 0 Hara
Thie O 'Hara story beginsg near the present Barcrott schools; 1 1922
Walter O'Hara constructed a small franme cottage style home for
the Miller +amily on what 1s now ath Street South, just east ot
aketield Street. It st1ll stands at ﬁgigzm ath Street South.

Durang the moand 1930 s Walter O 'Hara constructed homes
primarily in central Barcrott, bounded by Taylor Street on the

i on tne south, Four PMile Run and
FErshing/Buchanan Streste on the west and 4th Strest on the
norti. Frame cotrtags stvle homes (like those i1n the 400 block
of Waketield Street on the west side), larger +rame bungalows
(thres of the corners of &th and Wakefield Streets), moditied
Cape Cod styie homes (4600 plook of &th Street, &00 block of
Buchanan Streset) and the brick colonials (600 block of Tavlor
Sereet) were the predomninant styles Walfer 0 'Hara constructed

1

: = £

%@@/\

imn this arsa.
Construction in North Barcroftt

0 Hara purchnased land northwest of Fershing Drive and began
puilaing 1n this arsa in the late 19320°s througn the [780 7 s.

This area 1s bouwnded by Arlington Boulevard on the north,
Fershing Drive and Four Mile Run Fark on the south and east, and
includes the houses on both sides of Abingdon Street. Thesa
Homes, primarily in moditied cape cod and colonial stvyles,

are mostly of brick construction, although some stone housas wersa
also built during this time.

1" Hara house stvles are similar to designs in other parts of
Arlington. Walter 0'Hara used the architectural plan books of
thia time, however he adapted the nouse plans for hig own use.

0 'Hara construction crews included many worketrs from nearby
neighborhoods, particularly the black communities nezr Balley's
Crossroads and the Fresdman’'s Village area (now Arlington View.)

The O Hara homes were marketed directly by Walter 0O Hara and
later, His son Robert. The tamily operated a real estate agency
1-

that was located on Arlington Boulevard near the Henderson Street
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HOME OF WALTER AND ANNA O'HARA
4705 SOUTH 8th STREET

Presently resided in b

y Grandson Waldo and Janet O'Hara and their sons
Warren and Walter.

The exterior of the house was originally stucco. Waldo
added the shingle exterior.
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THE HOUSES ON 9th STREET BETWEEN WAKEFIELD AND BUCHANAN STREETS

Thomas J. Offutt and his wife, Evelyn S. Offutt submitted plans to
Arlington County for approval to build Columbia Park Apartments. During
the planning process, the citizens of Barcroft through the Barcroft School
and Civic League expressed their concern that the commercial area along
Columbia Pike would eventu®ally encroach upon their single family
residential neighborhood. The Offutts agreed to build a variety of single
family homes along both sides of the street between Wakefield and Buchanan
Streets which they would offer for sale. The remaining section of 9th Street
waé&ut through the marsh-like area so the houses could be built.

Lots on the South side of 9th Street were purchased from Sidney
Wilcox and his wife Jeanne. The lots on the north side were owned by
Algernon and Howard Handy,Jr. and sold to the Offuttsl- Dittmar Co.2 Inc.
on October 4, 1961.

The Columbia Park Apartments and homes on 9th Street were constructed.
Among the families who purchased the homes are: Marsolais, Reilly, Kassell,
Nash, Fagen and Ronigen.

1 Deed Book 1452 p.498 Clerk's Office Arlington County

2 Community Planning, Housing and Development Services
Division of Arlington County







HOUSES - SOUTH PERSHING DRIVE

Builder, Cooley built the red brick colonial homes on J.C.Forrest's
Addition to North Barcroft, in 1947. The addresses are #110 -*114 %118
# 122 - # 126 - # 130 South Pershing Drive.

In 1950 Crestwood Construction Corporation built the red brick
ramblers and split level single familY homes on Payne's Addition to
Barcroft opposite the homes built by Cooley. The addresses are #101 -
#105 - # 111 - # 117 - # 121  # 125 South Pershing Drive.






PARK RIDGE

800-819 South Stafford Street & 806-824 George Mason Drive

Creative Environments Inc. in February of 1975 purchased the house and
land at 811 South Stafford Street.1 The grey stone house, commonly known
as the Houseknecht-Winter house, was built by William Houseknecht in 1912 2
on the hill overlooking Doctor's Run. The brick single family homes

with mansard roofs built by James Reed in 19773 on the subdivision called
Park Ridge, are an excellent example of the preservation and restoration
of an old house and surrounding it with new homes that are architecturally

compatible.

1 Deed Book 1878 p. 344 Clerk's Office Arlington County
2 Real Estate Data, Inc. 1987 i
3 Deed Book 1878 p.354 Clerk's Office Arlington County




SEARS & ROEBUCK HOUSES

Sears, Roebuck and Company of Chicago offered, "houses by mail,
shipped by rail" from 1908 until 1940. Homes were purchased from catalogues
entitled, "BOOK OF MODERN HOMES AND BUILDING PLANS" or at sales offices in
large cities scattered throughout the United States. The closest sales
office to Arlington residents was in Washington, D.C.. Approximately
100,000 Sears homes were built nationally from about 450 models. There
were three catagories, HONOR BILT were the finest quality, STANDARD
BUILT, and SIMPLE" SECTIONAL COTTAGES. A Sears finest home came complete
with precut numbered pieces of lumber and millwork, electricity, paint,
nails and screws, siding, flooring, roofing, gutters, downspouts cabinetry,
etc.. The Standard and Cottage models had less millword and the materials
were of lessor quality. Plumbing, electrical, and heating fixtures were
extra and selected from the catalog individually.

Owners could assemble their own homes following the detailed manual
and floor plans coming with the kit, or have Sears engage local contractors
and supervise the construction. Very flexible arrangements could be
worked out.

Financing was arranged through local 'banks, F.H.A., and for a period
of time, Sears and Roebuck offered customers attractive loans.

Stevenson, Katherine Cole and Jandl, H. Ward: HOUSES BY MAIL, A
Guide to Houses from Sears, Roebuck and Company.
Preservation Press, Washington, D.C.: 1986
National Trust for Historic Preservation in the United
States.

Charles W. Rightmyer, and his wife Virginia purchased the WESTLY style
Sears House §hown on page 123 of HOUSES BY MAIL by Stevenson and Jandl.)
The house is located at 812 South Taylor Street.

As of this writing, we have not been able to authenticate what is
believed to be another Sears House existing in Barcroft known as the
CRESCENT style.



SEARS HOUSES

812 South Taylor Stréet




MODULAR HOMES
RYLAND

Ryland advertises as the "builder's builder". Ryland Modular homes
began operations in 1983 in Columbia, Maryland. There are two factories
producing Ryland modular homes in Maryland and one in Fredericksburg,
Virginia. The homes are built as modules in an environmentally controlled
factory and tested and inspected by accredited agencies. The house is 903
complete when it leaves the factory and is trucked to the site where a
work crew with a crane secures each module in place and makes it watertight.

The builder's responsibility is to build the foundation before
delivery, make the mechanical and electrical connections at the location
and provide any necessary interior and exterior work needed.

Presently, there are approximately 20 single family styles with 40
variations, and 10 different multifamily designs available. 1

Ryland homes presently in Barcroft:

628 South Taylor Street: constructed by AMCOL Development Group
Incorporated in 1985. The present owners are Jerry and
Margaret Baker. The lor at 628 Taylor was purchased May 6, 1931
by Guy and Lillie Spence from Albert and Clara Crouch.

-

Deed Book 0322 p. 0130 Clerk's Office Arlington County

4832 South 7th Street: built in 1987 by Daniel Schulz for sale
on a lot purchased from Bertha Fox

Deed Book 2231 P. 0250 Clerk's Office Arlington Dounty

1 Ryland Modular H<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>